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Tianyige Library is located on the bank of the Moon Lake in Ningbo. It was built as
the library of the Secretary of Defense, Fan Qin, in the 45th year of Jiajing in the Ming
Dynasty (1566). Tianyige Library is the oldest private library now still in existence in
China, and it is also one of the most ancient private libraries in the world. Now there are

more than 300,000 volumes of books in Tianyige Museum, which includes more than 80,000
volumes are reliable texts.

Tianyige Museum covers an area of 26,000 square meters. Tianyige library as its
core, Tianyige Museum is an integrated theme museum of book—collecting culture. The
whole place is divided into three functional parts: library culture, recreational gardens and
exhibition area.
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This is a sculptural work by a folk
artist named Hu Shancheng. Eight horses are
running on the side of the stream. Some are
wagging their tails and some are raising their
heads. They look real and vivid. Having a
rough look at it, you might find the picture as
a whole is not in good proportion. Actually, it
takes full advantage of the traditional Chinese
painting skills, with an emphasis on the points
of the sculpture.
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Dongming Hall was Fan Qin’ s library before Tianyige Library was built. Fan Qin
(1506——-1585),whose courtesy name was Yaoqin and pen name was Dongming, therefore,
his library is called Dongming Hall, which got another name “Yiwu Hut” . This hall was
rebuilt in 1980.
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In ancient time, Si Ma charged military, together with Si Tu, Si Kong, they are called

“Three Si” . Fan Qin was the Secretary of Defense and charged military, so his residence

was d Si Ma Residence. In 1996, the gate of Si Ma Residence and the rooms beside
were rebuilt.
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This was originally the east hall of the Fan’ s residence, and later it became the living
area of the Fan’ s descendants. It was outside the high wall around Tianyige Library. The
living area was separated from the book conservation area, which was elaborately planned
by Fan Qin to create better conditions for the preserved books. This building was rebuilt in
the 9 th year of Daoguang in the Qing Dynasty.
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Tianyige Library, which is also called Building of Treasured Books, was built from the
40th year to the 45th year of Jiajing in the Ming Dynasty (1561-1566). It was the library of
the Secretary of Defense, Fan Qin. It is the earliest private library still in existence in China.

There is a saying in the very classical book:the Book of Changes (also translated 1
Ching), a combine of one room in sky and six rooms on land can breed water. Fan therefore
practiced the idea in the design of Tianyige Library; wish in this way, fire could be prevented
from approaching and burning any books inside. Of course, the name “Tianyi” came out
in the same way. The architecture is two-story. There is one big room in the upper story and
six in the bottom. In addition; he dug a pond named “Tianyi Pond” right in front of the
library to store water, protecting books from fire.

In the 4th year of Kangxi in the Qing Dynasty (1665), Fan Guangwen, the great
grandson of Fan Qin, piled up lots rocks in and around the pond to beautify the environment.
Those rocks are mainly in shape of 3 Chinese characters carrying the meaning of happiness,
wealth, longevity. Others of them form the shape of nine lions and one elephant, showing a
special style of art which is particularly a distinguishing feature of gardens of South China.
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In all dynasties of China, academic classics were consistently and highly respected.
There was usually one Zunjing Pavilion in every province and county for keeping books of
precious classics. This pavilion was originally built in the local government school in Ningbo.
It was in a double—eave style and rebuilt in the year of Guangxu in the Qing Dynasty. In
1935, it was moved here when the repairs of Tianyige Library.
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There are altogether 173 stone tablets, among which 90 were moved from the
government school of Ningbo in 1935. The tablets have been repaired for 16 times in history
since the beginning of the Yuan Dynasty (1271-1368) through a long period to the year of
Guangxu in the Qing Dynasty (1875-1909). Some tablets still clearly keep the carving of
mottoes, aphorisms of ancient people, names of “jinshi” hundreds of years ago, by which
the content of education, the source of funds and the way of personnel training are reflected.
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In the Republic of China period (1911-1949), a famous local scholar, Ma Lian,
collected more than 1,000 bricks as old as the period of Jin Dynasty (265-420). He named
his collection room “Qianjin” , meaning the room for a thousand Jin bricks. Afterwards,
he donated all of them to Tianyige in which an exhibition room was specially prepared for
keeping the bricks. The name “Qianjin” remains unchanged.
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The East Garden lies to the southeast of Tianyige Library. It covers about 6,000
square meters. Since 1959, the garden started to take shape with the ground leveled, trees
planted, pavilions, the iron bull and stone tigers moved here. In 1974, 69 stone tablets were
inlaid into the surrounding walls. In 1982, the garden was expanded by digging the pond,
heaping up hills, framing corridors and paths. What is more, two buildings of the Qing
Dynasty were moved here. In 1986, the rebuilding construction completed and the garden
was open to the public.
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This pavilion was built in the Ming Dynasty for the particular use of ancestor worship.
It was originally located on Zuguan Mountain in the south of Ningbo, and was moved
here in 1959. The pavilion was framed in a graceful structure and patterns, such as “fish
jumping over the dragon gate” , “two lions playing with a ball” , and “Kylin bringing
wealth and fortune” which are carved on carry traditional good wishes.
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fragrance in harmony with the environment.
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Mahjong came into being as a synthesizer of the various games of chance in the
ancient China, mainly dice, Xuanhe card games and Madiao paper card games. Its spread
and development is closely related to Ningbo. In the ancestral home of Mr Chen Zhengyue,
the inventor of Mahjong, we exhibit the following three parts: the history and culture of
Mahjong, Mahjong and Ningbo, a display of Mahjong cards from all over the world. We
have also arranged two card-playing rooms of the Chinese style and western style, and
a statue of “three players waiting for the fourth” , which vividly shows the history and
development of Mahjong and its origin. This exhibition focuses on the interest and benefit
of Mahjong as a sport. It proposes Mahjong as a healthy game. Today, this is the only
exhibition hall of Mahjong in China.
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Bridal sedan Chair of Ningbo is also called “Wangong Sedan chair” , which is
famous for its delicate techniques. The bridal sedan chair on display has a height of 3
meters, a length of 1.5 meters, and a width of 95 centimeters. On it carved beautiful wood-
carving and decorated splendid gold foil and red lacquer, which make the chair shining
and gorgeous.

There is a tale about the chair.
In the Southern Song Dynasty, Zhao
Gou, the junior emperor, once was
chasing after by some soldiers from
Jin Dynasty. Being in danger, Zhao
was saved by a smart local girl. Zhao
then promised her that he would pick
her up to the court soon. However,
their signal of meeting was leaked
out and copied by every other girl
in the village. Zhao could not find
her and had not much intention with
it. Finally, Zhao gave an order that
all the girls of east Zhejiang could
receive queen—level wedding when
they got married. They were allowed
to dress themselves queen’ s bridal
ensemble with phoenix decorations
and sit in a bridal sedan chair on
the way to the bridegroom’ s home.
On the way, any official came across
had to get off his chair or horseback.
Upon that, emperor’ s order
gradually became a local custom and
that kind of sedan chair got more and
more popular. With the tendency,
Ningbo’ s technique of sedan chair
making was more elaborate and
lavish than ever before.
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